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accurately on multitrack tape; that the tape was reduced
to typewriting by my direction; and that this is a
correct transcript of the same.

Francis J. Dujmic, Administrator
Court Reporters

DIAZ DATA SERVICES, hereby certifies that the
attached pages represent an accurate transcript of the
electronic sound recording of the proceedings in the

Court of Common Pleas of Delaware County, Pennsylvania,
in the matter of:

PNC BANK N.A. AS TRUSTEE FOR
ESTATE OF GEORGE PENNOCK

vs.
PROHIBITION NATIONAL COMMITTEE, et al
#114-1937
BY:
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Transcriber for
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The foregoing record of the proceedings upon the
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF DELAWARE COUNTY
PENNSYLVANIA

ORPHANS COURT DIVISION

* k Kk Kk Kk Kk k k k kK k Kk k Kk k *k No. 114-1937
*
PNC BANK N.A. AS TRUSTEE FOR *
ESTATE OF GEROGE PENNOCK *
%
vs. *
*
PROHIBITION NATIONAL *
COMMITTEE, et al *
*
* k% % k% * k k& *k Kk * *k * * * * *

Media, PA, January 16, 2007

* K Kk

Courtroom Number 8

* Kk x
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

BEFORE: THE HONORABLE EDWARD J. ZETUSKY, JR.

CHRISTOPHER SORIANO, ESQUIRE
For the Plaintiff

WILLIAM BODAGER, ESQUIRE
For the Defendant
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THE COURT:

PROCEEDTINGS

January 16, 2007

We have a matter that’s -- the caption of
which is Residuary Trust Under Will Of George
L. Pennock, For The Benefit Of The Prohibition
Party. It’s an Orphans Court matter under
Orphans Court #114 of 1937. That’s the year I
was born. Shows you how ancient I am.
Basically we have two matters that are before
the Court for decision. The first matter
which brought the matter to this Court is
Petition of PNC Bank, filed October 7, 2005,
for leave to make distribution to income
beneficiary and to direct the refund of prior
incorrect distribution. And the second is a
Complaint of PNC Bank as trustee for the
estate of George Pennock for interpleader. I
believe that the Complaint was filed as a
result of the suggestion by the former
President Judge Clouse. Now before we go any
further, let’s see who we have in Court.

Representing PNC Bank?

MR. SORIANO:

Good morning, Your Honor, Christopher Soriano,

Diaz Data Services
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MR.
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MR.
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MR.

THE

Wolf, Block, Sharen, Sollis, Cullen,

Philadelphia [ph], for PNC Bank.

COURT:
Oh, you drew the short straw? And
representing one of the Respondents, Earl F.
Dodge, is counsel. Will he please identify
himself for the record?

BODAGER:
Yes, Bill Bodager, Supreme Court #23004.

COURT:
Now who technically do you represent, Mr.
Bodager?

BODAGER:
The -- the Prohibition National Convention and
Mr. Dodge.

COURT:
Okay.

BODAGER:
And other members of the Prohibition National
Convention -- Committee, I’m sorry.

COURT:
National Committee or Convention?

BODAGER:
Committee.

COURT:

Diaz Data Services
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Okay now Mr. Dodge, by the Dodge Group, is one
of the two persons and/or groups claiming to
control the Prohibition National Committee,
which is the reason for the PNC Bank’s
Petition, as I understand it. We’ll get into
that in a minute. The other Respondent or the
other group claiming control of the
Prohibition National Committee is Leroy J.
Clutter -- or Plutten [phl].

MR. BODAGER:
Yes, sir.

THE COURT:
Is that you, sir?

MR. PLUTTEN:
Yes, sir, that’s me; good morning, Your Honor.

THE COURT:
Good morning; okay, Mr. Plutten had requested
that he be allowed to participate by
telephone. And I had sent Mr. Plutten a
letter in response thereto, “I am in receipt
of your fax correspondence to me dated January
8, 2007. Please be advised that the
conference in a matter scheduled by Judge
Clouse for Tuesday, January 16, 2007, at 10:00

a.m., will be conducted as scheduled. The
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conference will take place in Courtroom #8,
Courthouse, Media, Pennsylvania. Regarding
your request that you be permitted to
participate in the conference by telephone,
that request is denied. Also be advised that
one of the first issues to be discussed at the
conference will be what nature of entity the
Prohibition National Committee is. The reason
for this inquiry is that if the Prohibition
National Committee is a corporate entity it
must be represented by counsel. It can not
proceed pro se with representation by officers
or members.” Now as I understand, what has
led to the George L. Pennock Estate is a will
dated May 18, 1928. Letters testamentary were
issued on January 14, 1938. Paragraph nine of
the will provides that the residue of the
estate will go into a trust which is now
controlled by PNC Bank with the net income to
be divided 49 percent to the National
Prohibition Party, 49 percent to the
Pennsylvania Prohibition Party and 2 percent
to the Delaware County Prohibition Party. As
I understand it, the Delaware County

Prohibition Party no longer exists. And a
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determination has been made in the past by the
trustee to divide that 2 percent equally
between the State and National Committees, so
that 50 percent of the net income would go to
the National Prohibition Party, 50 percent to
the Pennsylvania Prohibition Party. I
understand that the principal amount in the
trust is approximately $300,000. The net
income that is derived per year is
approximately $4,000 to $6,000, somewhere in
that figure; that there is no dispute as to
the half that goes to the Pennsylvania
Prohibition Party. So we’re concerned with
the other half, which represents $2,000 to
$3,000 a year to go to the National
Prohibition Party. Now PNC, pre-2004, had
been making payments without any dispute
arising to both the State and National
Committees. In 2004 I understand that a
dispute arose as to who controlled the
National Committee. One group is the Dodge
Group, headed by Earl F. Dodge, now
represented by Mr. Bodager and formerly
represented by Robert Carpenter, who was

allowed to withdraw by Judge Clouse. That
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MR.
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MR.

THE

MR.

group is housed in Denver, Colorado, as I
understand. Even though the National
Committee, I understand, payments have been
going to it in care of Mr. Dodge to Florida, I
believe. So how we get from Florida to
Colorado, I don’t know, but I may be mistaken
in that. The second contesting group is the
Webb Group, whose secretary is Leroy J.
Plutten, which is housed in Michigan. So the
issue before the Court is to whom the checks
should be paid. ©Now Mr. Soriano, do you know
whether the National Prohibition Party is a
corporate entity?

SORIANO:
I do not know the answer to that question,
Your Honor.

COURT:
Okay thank you; Mr. Bodager, can you answer
that?

BODAGER:
Yes, I can. It incorporated in 2002.

COURT:
Incorporated in 2002 where?

BODAGER:

In Colorado.

Diaz Data Services
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MR.

THE

MR.

COURT:
Before that what had it been?
BODAGER:
A -- I —-- just a party, just a convention,
just a committee.
COURT:
So it would be an unincorporated association?
BODAGER:
Yes.
COURT:
Now the principal from your side is Earl F.
Dodge, correct?
BODAGER:
Yes.
COURT:
And what is he in the corporation?
BODAGER:
He is the president of the corporation and a
chairman of the committee.
COURT:
Now did the -- prior to the incorporation had
the unincorporated association have bylaws?
BODAGER:

Yes, it did. They were drafted or approved --

originated, I guess, in 1957, have been

Diaz Data Services
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10

amended somewhat since then and are the
current bylaws that the corporation and the
committee operate under today.
COURT:
Okay now what had -- you claimed that Mr.
Dodge had been chairman of the committee?
BODAGER:
Yes.
COURT:
Since when?
BODAGER:
1956.
COURT:
Now is also Mr. Plutten a member of the
committee?
BODAGER:
He was —-- he -- he is not now.
COURT:
Mr. Bodager, was Mr. Plutten a member of the
committee at one time?
BODAGER:
At one time, vyes.
COURT:
And what -- did he hold any position?

BODAGER:

Diaz Data Services
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He held the position of secretary.

THE COURT:
And how long was he secretary, to your
knowledge?

MR. BODAGER:
Less than a month.

THE COURT:
And when was that?

MR. BODAGER:
Within 2003.

THE COURT:
Well how could he be a secretary of the
unincorporated association of the association
became incorporated in 2002? You’re confusing
me.

MR. BODAGER:
He was secretary of the association.

THE COURT:
We have two entities, Mr. Bodager; one is the
corporation, which was incorporated in 2002,
and the other is the unincorporated
association which existed prior to 2002. Now
using those terms was he secretary of the
corporation or secretary of the association?

MR. BODAGER:

Diaz Data Services
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Can I consult with my client?
THE COURT:
Sure.
MR. BODAGER:
He was considered secretary of both when he
was elected in June of 2003.
THE COURT:
How can you have both?

MR. BODAGER:

Two organizations, two -- they were
synonymous. The association and the
corporation -- organization were synonymous.

THE COURT:
I always thought that if you had an
unincorporated association that got
incorporated that ended the so-called life of
the unincorporated association and began the
life of the corporation. You don’t have two
running parallel paths. Okay now who were the
incorporators of the -- was Mr. Plutten one of
the incorporators?

MR. BODAGER:
No.

THE COURT:

How long has Mr. Plutten, from your

Diaz Data Services
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standpoint, been involved with either the
association or the corporation? When did it
start?
BODAGER:
May and June -- May through June of 2003.
COURT:
That was his only involvement?
BODAGER:
As secretary.
COURT:
What?
BODAGER:
Yes, as a secretary.
COURT:
As a member, I don’t care as a secretary.
BODAGER:
As a member, also.
COURT:
Now Mr. Plutten...
PLUTTEN:
Yes, sir?
COURT:
Were you secretary of both the corporation and
the association?

PLUTTEN:

Diaz Data Services
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No, sir, there is no such thing as a
corporation. There is only the unassociated
one. If I may volunteer a bit of information,
it’s my understanding, recognizing that as he
says I am new in this, that apparently he and
his daughter incorporated the organization,
supposedly, without the consent or knowledge
of any of the members. That’s my
understanding. And because I got short
notice, I thank you for having me come,
because now I see it’s very valuable to be
here, so I withdraw my request. I, you know,
contacted people over -- this was a holiday
weekend. So I contacted, you know, somebody
who was there at the time and so affidavits
are going to be coming as we can to explain

better than I can, sir.

Now Mr. Soriano, you had filed a Complaint and

interpleader.

MR. SORIANO:

THE COURT:

Yes, sir.

Basically all that is, I think, and I haven’t

researched this, that’s why I love this job,

Diaz Data Services
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you attorneys have to do the research, all an
interpleader does is say to the Court, hey, we
have money to pay to somebody. We don’t know
who we’re going to pay it to so, therefore,
we’re requesting Court approval to pay it into
the Court until the parties or the Court

determines who it is payable to.

MR. SORIANO:

THE COURT:

That’s correct, Your Honor. 1In the
Interpleader Complaint, one of the paragraphs
we stated we have essentially no interest.
The bank has no interest in which of the two
competing groups, if there are two competing
groups, ends up with the money at the end of
the day. The bank is only seeking Court
approval to pay it to one or the other or
whatever entity comes out of these

proceedings.

Okay now is the interpleader the correct
avenue to determine which of the competing
groups is entitled to the money or is the
interpleader just to allow the requester, so

to speak, to deposit the money with the Court?

MR. SORIANO:

Diaz Data Services
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We believe the interpleader is the correct
avenue, Your Honor. It was one suggested by
Judge Clouse after the Petition. And Judge
Clouse’s concern at the time was to insure
that we had everyone who could possibly lay a
claim to this money, an individual or
organizational capacity, within the
jurisdiction of the Court. So i1f the Court
could resolve this matter, because this is a
recurring payment situation the goal was for
the Court to have before it under its
jurisdiction any individual, regardless of
group or corporate entity, before it so that
the Court could hear the testimony of any of
those individuals who wish to lay claim to
this money and to, therefore, enter a binding
judgment upon all of those individuals that
would then be res judicata for future

distributions.

Okay now is there a right to a jury trial in

an interpleader?

MR. SORIANO:

We do -- it is an action in equity, Your

Honor, and so...

Diaz Data Services
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THE COURT:
Which there’s no right to a jury trial.

MR. SORIANO:
That’s correct.

THE COURT:
I wasn’t sure whether interpleader was an
action of law or in equity, but you’re
confident it’s an action in equity?

MR. SORIANO:
We believe it’s an action in equity, but we
can certainly verify that and submit that
paper to Your Honor if the opposite is
correct.

THE COURT:
I have no problem with that. Now we have
really two issues here, really. One is who is
the recipient? Is it the unincorporated
association or the incorporated; and two, who
has control of the recipient? It seems as if
Mr. Plutten is taking the position that the
corporation was formed not as a successor to
the unincorporated association in which the
unincorporated association would have merged
in the corporation, but was created without

notice to the membership as a separate entity.
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And to some extent, what Mr. Bodager is
saying, after consultation with his client,
give credence to that possibility because
really Mr. Dodge is apparently talking about
two separate entities moving on parallel

paths.

MR. BODAGER:

THE COURT:

Perhaps I might have misled the Court in that
statement. I think the reason that he was --
he incorporated was to protect the name.
Other actions were taking place in the --
other people by the distance in the
organization to incorporate names, so he did

it to incorporate -- to protect the name.

Everybody sit back and relax. I know to
litigants issues of specific cases are very
important to those litigants. I understand
that. But looking at this case through the
eyes of the Court, in which we see many cases
coming before the Court, when you’re fighting
over an annual sum of money that is
approximately $2,000 to $3,000 a year, I think
everybody would have to agree that the Court,

looking through its eyes, wonders what we’re
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doing. Now you have Mr. Dodge’s group which
has hired an attorney to replace another
attorney who withdrew from the matter. You
got Mr. Plutten who is proceeding pro se, but
he’s in an area, namely the law, that he’s not
quite familiar with. And he’d be operating,
if he continues to go pro se, as a blind man
would be walking down the street and probably
in worse shape because a blind man has
instincts that helps him maneuver in mobility
down the street and crossing streets. It
would appear to me that at this point in time
that there should at least be some discussion
between the two groups to see if they can
resolve their dispute on an amicable basis
rather than tying up a Court in a protracted
trial over $2,000 to $3,000 a year. In fact,
to me, it appears to be downright foolish to
get involved in protracted legal contest over
$2,000 to $3,000 a year. I want to thank,
publicly, my personal law clerk, Mr. Rasinsky,
who is present in Court for going through
these documents to give me a synopsis by which
I could understand what is going on. Whether

the two sides can resolve their dispute or

Diaz Data Services
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not, I don’t know. But since we have both

principals here, it seems to me that it would
pbe foolish if we don’t at least attempt to do
it. Now Mr. Bodager, are you and your client

willing to talk to Mr. Plutten?

MR. BODAGER:

THE COURT:

Yes, I might say -- and if the -- if he
reviewed the record that an offer -- an offer
was made almost a year ago that was not
accepted -- or was accepted by the participant
but not -- was not accepted by people back
home. But we’re ready to sit down and talk

again.

Well let’s -- I don’t want to get into past
news. I wasn’t involved in it a year ago. I

could care less what happened a year ago.

MR. BODAGER:

THE COURT:

We’re ready to sit down...

I move on. As I tell people continually, the
more we argue about what happened in the past
will stay in the past and never get into the

future. Now let’s forget about what happened

in the past. My MO has always been to try to

Diaz Data Services
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get parties to resolve their own disputes.
I’ve been somewhat successful in that
approach. It’s an approach I had as an
attorney. And as an attorney I always wanted
a Judge to, number one, know about the case
that I had before him, not as much as maybe I
knew but at least had a handle on it. And
number two, to try to use his or her good
offices to try to get the parties to put their
heads together and come up with an amicable
resolution to the dispute. If I wasn’t
somewhat successful in this approach I would
be buried with all the cases I have coming
into me and whatever section I had been in
before now. And let me tell you something, as
a practicing attorney I know my clients were
always trying to figure out ways to get a case
settled for the most part. They would argue
about principals, but one thing I found out
about most people, they dislike paying
attorneys, they dislike paying experts of any
sort. And even pro se litigants, I still see
them coming into Court with eyes that are
looking at me like, Judge, get me out of this

Courthouse; I don’t know what I’'m in; and I

Diaz Data Services
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want to get out without getting burnt too bad.
It always amazed me as a Judge -- I saw it as
an attorney and it’s still true. If I would
suggest a settlement to my client and my
client would say I was nuts, and I went into
Court and the Judge made the same
recommendations that I had suggested to my
client, my client would say why didn’t you
have enough brains to tell me the same thing.
I don’t know what the heck it is about a black
robe, but I know that the attorneys, for the
most part, take it on the chin most of the
time from their clients who are dug in on
principal. You know, principal is nice.

We’re not involved here with principal. We’re
here with dollars and cents, and a small
amount of dollars and cents, that it cost a
lot of money to fly in from wherever you two
gentlemen live, for what? For what? There’s
other battles to fight, other matters -- ways
to do it. So why don’t we take a recess now
for 15 minutes. Mr. Roth, allow Mr. Bodager
and his client and Mr. Plutten to go in the
jury room.

THE COURT OFFICER:
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The jury room is [inaudible].

THE COURT:
Oh, is it? Okay you can take them down there
or they can stay in here and we can clear out
the Courtroom, whatever they desire. Mr.
Soriano, I’m sure that you don’t want to get
involved in discussions, do you?

MR. SORIANO:
If Your Honor please, I will also take my
leave for the discussion to allow the parties
to work it out themselves.

THE COURT:
Okay, coward.

MR. BODAGER:
I like him. I'm going to [inaudible].

THE COURT:
But seriously, seriously, I think at this
point in time both sides have to stick their
heads together and push everything to the
sideline. We’re talking about a small amount
of money and it’s not worth both sides to keep
up this litigation, especially get into more
costly litigation, more lengthy litigation.
Okay so we’ll take 15 minutes.

MR. BODAGER:
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Thank you, Your Honor.

[Off the record]

THE COURT:

* x k

Okay Mr. Bodager has advised me that the
parties have agreed to disagree. Now Mr.
Bodager has also indicated to me that he
thought that maybe some conciliation by myself
would help the matters out. Normally when a
Judge is going to sit as the -- not only the
Judge but the trier of fact in a non-jury
matter, that Judge cannot become actively
involved in settlement negotiations as far as
the specifics. However, I’ve already pretty
well determined that if this matter is going
to go to trial that I’m going to assign the
matter to a Judge in the civil division or
civil section to try since they are more
equipped to handle multiple day trials. And I
would assume that this would be a multiple day
trial if it ever began. So Mr. Bodager,
suppose you tell me where the parties are at

and how I can be of assistance?

MR. BODAGER:

Well we’re -- it’s a matter of the amount of
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money, the amount of cost that you brought out
that would be involved if we did go to Court.
We’re talking about a maximum at $3,000 a year

probably...

Well it’s not only the Court action. I want
everybody to understand this. That’s just one
part of what you have to understand. The
trial doesn’t end this matter. Whoever
considers themselves as the loser of the trial
and based upon findings that could possibly be
made you may have one of the two parties
considering themselves as losers; you could
possibly have both parties considering
themselves as unhappy with the decision. But
those parties have a right to appeal to the
Superior Court. And my guess is that if you
cannot settle the case at this level that the
heels be so dug in that one or both parties
would take an appeal. So you’re talking about

litigation going on for a number of years.

MR. BODAGER:

THE COURT:

Yes, sir, I appreciate that additional

comment, Your Honor.
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And I think that’s what lay people have to
look at. So now the reason I push settlements
is because I have always been of the opinion
that the litigants themselves can fashion a
resolution of their dispute better than the
Courts can, in most cases, because many times
when the Court -- whether it’s a Judge sitting
without a jury or a jury, you’re sure at least
one party being unhappy. And many times both
parties are unhappy with the final decision.

So go ahead, I'm sorry.

MR. BODAGER:

THE COURT:

What I wanted to say is I believe -- and I
believe we both agree here that both groups --
both groups have similar objectives. Both
have similar objectives. My client has made
the offer of allocating 1/2 of the funds to
the other group and 1/2 to his group and
continue on that basis for as long as the
trust provides funds. And I think Mr. Plutten

has objected to that.

It would seem to me, Mr. Plutten, that that
would seem to be the common sense approach to

it.

Diaz Data Services

331 Schuylkill Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110 ~ 717-233-6664



[image: image85.png]B W

NN D

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

27

MR. PLUTTEN:

THE COURT:

May I answer that?

Sure.

MR. PLUTTEN:

THE COURT:

The issue has been, for some years, that Mr.
Dodge refuses to explain what he does with the
funds; that we suspect that it’s used for
potentially personal purposes. So my request
is that there be receipts and that there be a
time limit on this, because this is supposed
to be an election year within the organization
2007. Are we expected to make a deal based
upon 2003 that already has 1/3 of the people
are slow showing up and we have a vast
majority signing under the bylaws to meet.

And now we’re supposed to make a deal for all
eternity; he says forever. That man, once he
is gone, sad to say, his organization is gone
because he is it. We are active members. So
I would like to have that there be a time
limit for this as to how long this goes on and
that there be some sort of receipts. I mean,

his prior attorney...
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Okay so that -- okay so that what you have is
Mr. Bodager’s client offering split 50/50 and
Mr. Plutten's group really wanting accounting
and term. Now I personally feel you’re both
going along the right road. I really think
that they are not counterproductive to each
other. I think probably the easiest part is
splitting the net income 50/50, requiring each
side to give to the other an accounting of the
use of those funds, probably do it like the
government, by April 15 of each year you give
an accounting of the use of those funds for
the prior year -- for the prior calendar year.
I think that’s the simplest way to do it. So
that would take care of that situation. The
only difficulty then would be the term. Now
Mr. Bodager, would your client have any
objection to the split of 50/50 and each side
give to the other an accounting by April 15 of

the use of those funds the prior year?

MR. BODAGER:

THE COURT:

My client has just indicated to me that that

would be acceptable to him.

Okay; okay so we have agreement there. So the
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only other thing is term.

MR. PLUTTEN:

My proposal is until the next election, which
is scheduled for this year, 2007, because our
bylaws provide for a quadrennial system of
elections. His side is about 1/3 or so of the
membership. We need to merge together, so I
say we need to have a merger not this constant
split for perpetuity, but a merger so if we
all vote -- and Mr. Carpenter, his prior
lawyer, had said that equivalent of an
election over again, but he refuses that
because he knows he’s a tiny minority. And we
all understand that in any elective position
when a president or governor leaves office he
doesn’t have any authority over the funds,
whatsoever. But in any case, if we were to do
it -- instead of 50/50, 2/3, 1/3, that would
be more realistic in terms of the percentages
and respect the majority rule concept here in

America.

MR. BODAGER:

THE COURT:

Well the objective of both groups is the same.

Okay well wait a minute; wait a minute. Are
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you proposing, Mr. Plutten, that if you split
the proceeds 2/3, 1/3 that you will not push
for an accounting or for -- or for a term?

MR. PLUTTEN:
I would think we need all three for...

THE COURT:
Now. ..

MR. PLUTTEN:
...reason that there’s been a long-term
problem. We had a beautiful building...

THE COURT:
I know. Mr. Plutten, all I'm saying is that,
you know, in any negotiation there’s got to be
give and take. So you can’t change one term
and expect the other terms to remain constant.

MR. PLUTTEN:
It’s really three parts. We got to merge. We
got to have a limit. We got to have
accounting. And it should be proportional for
membership because other wise this is going to
last for eternity.

THE COURT:
Where was your building?

MR. PLUTTEN:

Pardon?
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THE COURT:
Where was the building?

MR. PLUTTEN:
I don’t understand...

THE COURT:
Where was your building? You said you had a
building at one time?

MR. PLUTTEN:
Oh, we had a building in Denver, Colorado. I
brought along a picture. That was a very
beautiful building. It cut two condominiums,
I believe it is. He inexplicably sold them
and where did the money go? You know what I
mean, that was a separate fund, we understand.
But we’re using the building and one day it
disappears. It’s like somebody sells this
Courthouse; one day you show up and it’s gone.
There is no accounting for many years. So
accounting is extremely crucial. And I
hesitate to agree to after the fact because
it’s too late if it’s all gone after the fact.
You know to say well he spent it on health
insurance or whatever it is, and you know, it
wasn’t -- because I don’t believe that we

believe that we have the same goal. We
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suspect that Mr. Dodge is for Mr. Dodge. And
he uses this, it’s the Lord’s work and the
prohibition thing as a cover for his real
motives. So we don’t necessarily agree at all
that this is identical purpose or similar
purpose because of the -- he hates the —-- he
doesn’t like -- when I say the word
personality, I don’t want to use the word

personality...

Well then what you’re saying is that you don’t

want to settle, is that what you’re saying?

PLUTTEN:

COURT:

What we’re saying is that it would have to be
an honest settlement with actual respect for

promoting the cause not selves.

Mr. Bodager, do you have anything to say with

regard to term, the term of the agreement?

BODAGER:

Yes, perpetual, just the same as the trust is
right now. Of course, I’d also -- giving

[inaudible] but the number of members of each
organization shouldn’t come into the issue of

splitting the funds. We both, I believe, have
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the same objective. And whether -- and we
disagree that he has more members than his
group has but, in any event, that’s part of
what would come up at trial. The thing is,
we’re willing -- both groups has the same
objective, whether there’s ten here and twelve
there, the money goes to the same purpose,
prohibition, advancing the concepts of

prohibition.

MR. PLUTTEN:

THE COURT:

We don’t believe that.

Okay.

MR. PLUTTEN:

THE COURT:

I’'m sorry; I would like to make a deal. Mr.
Carpenter also suggests that a possible
election, like ratifying June, 2003, and
September, 2003, and have everybody vote that
claims to be a member. But he doesn’t accept
that because he knows he’ll be out-voted. I
mean, and citation in the summary judgment
motion, you know, that’s a basic thing for 200

years in America, majority rules.

Well your summary judgment motion is going to
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be denied, because summary judgment is not
available at this point. It’s only where the
facts are so clear and undisputed that they’re
entitled to summary judgment before a Court
hearing. So you’ll be getting an Order from
me denying that. And I'm glad you brought it
up because I didn’t want to forget to mention
that.

MR. PLUTTEN:
Sir, would you, in your Order, explain the
reason or will it be a general denial?

THE COURT:
Well it will be a general denial because there
are not sufficient undisputed facts on the
record for the Court to grant summary judgment
to either side.

MR. PLUTTEN:
Okay.

THE COURT:
I mean, all we have are allegations now.

MR. PLUTTEN:
Well we provide affidavits; he doesn’t.

THE COURT:
Well affidavits really -- the only part they

play in a Court proceeding is really with
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regard to a Petition for a preliminary
injunction where you attach affidavits for the
Court to grant an ex parte preliminary
injunction with a hearing within five days.
Affidavits, as such, are not admissible in a

Court of law.

MR. PLUTTEN:

THE COURT:

Oh.
Considered as hearsay. Well I -- I have
devised many ways to settle cases. But if one

side wants a merger of two groups and the
other side does not want a merger, I don’t
know how the heck I could settle this thing,
because that’s basically what’s at the crux of

this.

MR. BODAGER:

THE COURT:

I just hate to see this; when both groups are

using money for the same purpose...

How did the groups come to separate?

MR. BODAGER:

THE COURT:

What’s that?

How did the groups separate?
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MR. BODAGER:

THE COURT:

Personalities, I think.

Well that’s what happens many times. That’s

what happens many times.

MR. PLUTTEN:

Sir, it wasn’t personality. It’s simply that
the rest of us, the majority, want accounting
and he doesn’t want to provide it at any
point, ever. So it’s not personality. I hate
to use the political word character, but I
mean it’s not personality. He’s a charming,
nice person. But the other issue is let’s
know what you’re doing with the money and
preferably in advance, before it’s too late
and it’s all gone. You, sir, have a budget
here. You’re a President Judge. And probably
someone in the government wants to know what
you’re planning to do with probably millions
of dollars for running a place like this.

They probably want to know what you’re going
to do with it before rather than well I went
to Hawaii a year later and then it’s after the
fact. You wouldn’t do after the fact-ism, you

know. I'm sure that you probably -- as an
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attorney for many years, accounted to your
clients. Probably they knew what you were
doing in advance. After the fact-ism, a year
later, just seems inconceivable, your
reputation is understood. So you can solve
this by specifying reasonable accounting
approaches and maybe to report to the Court on
anything significant. I think our policy is
something like $1,500, you know, need approval
prior to that. I hate to be burdening you for

eternity but...

All right let me ask you this. As a matter of

curiosity, how old are you, Mr. Plutten?

PLUTTEN:

COURT:

DODGE =

COURT:

Sir, I am 60 years old. I was just 60 in

November.

Okay and Mr. Dodge?

Seventy-four.

Now when you talk about an election, you’re

talking about an election of the

unincorporated association, correct, Mr.
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Plutten?

MR. PLUTTEN:

THE COURT:

Pardon?

You’re talking about the election for the

unincorporated association, is that correct?

MR. PLUTTEN:

THE COURT:

Well because he claims that there’s a huge
overlap, therefore, we would want it to be --
if it’s going to be genuine, it has to be of
all the people, all the people who he says ar
on his side and all the people we say are on
our side. Now that’s to us a disadvantage in
a sense because many of our people have died
from 2003, where his have not, essentially.
However, I’m agreeing to ignore the votes of
the deceased who would be in our favor. I
mean, as of today what we say is he was duty
bound by Judge Clouse’s Order, as I was, too,
to provide a list of our members within ten
days. He took ten months. I did it in nine

days.

Well how many members did you submit?

MR. PLUTTEN:
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About 30, approximately.

COURT:
And how many members did Mr. Dodge submit?

PLUTTEN:
He said 14 at the time, but he really counted
3 of our people. BAnd one of those persons
wrote me a private letter saying he has no
interest in this.

SORIANO:
Your Honor, if I may, one of the gentlemen in
the audience just passed me a note. And I
believe he’s also a pro se Defendant in this
matter. It states that he may have a
compromise to offer. And if Your Honor wishes
to hear from him or not...

COURT:
And your name, sir?

HEDGES:
I'm James Hedges. I’ve been a friend of Earl
Dodge for about 40 years.

COURT:
Hedges, H-e-d-g-e-s?

HEDGES:
Right; right, sir.

COURT:
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And which group are you a member?
MR. HEDGES:
I'm the executive secretary of the Prohibition
National Committee -- on Mr. Plutten’s side.
THE COURT:
And who is the other gentleman here; I’'m
sorry.
MR. HENSHAW:

I'm Seth Henshaw; I’m not actually...

THE COURT:
Oh, you’re not involved in this, okay; okay,
Mr. Hedges, you are one of the named members
of the -- of the Plutten group, so to speak,
correct?
MR. HEDGES:
Yes, sir.
THE COURT:
Okay what can I -- what can you add to this?
MR. HEDGES:

There’s been some informal discussion among
other members that perhaps instead of giving
-- giving the money to either group, that the
Court could award the money to a -- an
independent treasurer. Each group would then

submit claims for reimbursement and receipts
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to that treasurer up to half and half or
whatever percentage is agreed on. So neither
group would receive the money but both groups
could claim reimbursement for the money.
COURT:
And who would be this independent treasurer?
HEDGES:
That’s your...
COURT:
Pardon?
HEDGES:
It’s your option, Your Honor.
COURT :
Well I don’t want to get involved in -- in
handling money.
HEDGES:
Mr. Soriano, possibly.
SORIANO:
With respect, Your Honor, the bank is in a
position where -- I would assume the bank
would be in a position where if it was placed
in a role of actually deciding the claims to
the money rather than simply carrying out the
role of the trust, that it’s litigation -- the

litigation against the bank would increase...
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COURT:
You’re right; you’re right.
SORIANO:

..substantially and the cost -- the cost
would essentially defeat the rest of the
trust.

BODAGER:
Your Honor, I agree with him.

COURT:
Yes, but would the -- would the treasurer have
the final word?

BODAGER:
Yes, sir, but we would have to decide who the
treasurer is, because we have a dispute. We,
the majority, say a certain person, Mr.
Bledsaw [ph]; he says someone else.

PLUTTEN:
No, it would need to be a person not
associated with either group.

COURT:
Why would anybody want to get in that
position?

PLUTTEN:
I have no idea.

COURT:
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I think -- I think -- I understand what you’re
trying to do and I commend you for it. But I
think it’s an impractical way of doing it
because I don’t see anybody willing to do that
unless the two sides can agree on the person
to be the treasurer; that person agrees; and
they agree that person has the final word on
payment of money. But I think really, when
you’re talking about a sum of money this small
why get involved in all that? Why get
involved in all that? It seems to me the
simpler one is just to give part of the money
to one group, part of the money to the other

group, with each accounting to the other.

PLUTTEN:

And file the reports on April 15.

Yes; yes, sir.

MR. HEDGES:

Your Honor, because I was elected by both
groups, I am the secretary of both groups so,
therefore, it might be possible, even though
he denies that, he says I have a two-month
term, well he never explains how that term

suddenly magically disappeared when the term
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is for four years or until the next
convention. And so, therefore, I consider
myself secretary of both organizations as you
see on your [inaudible] when you went through
it. And I was given a four-year term by him.
He has a stop from saying you magically
disappeared, now you fired me but we can’t
fire them. And we didn’t fire them. We
simply rescinded their improper claim. But
since I officially, on paper, am chosen by
both groups, if you were to Order -- I would
be willing to accept the responsibility, much
as -- I mean, I’'m not fond of getting in this,
because I mean, it would make more problems.
But you know, 1f somehow there was kind of an
arrangement could be made, I'm the only person
on paper acceptable, otherwise people don’t
speak to each other, basically. 1It’s very

sad.

Yes, Mr. Dodge?

Yes, if I could just say a word or two. I'm
in an awkward place because Mr. Bodager’s

newly representing us and I was not able to

Diaz Data Services

331 Schuylkill Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110 ~ 717-233-6664



[image: image103.png]10
11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

45

communicate everything back and forth with him
in the short time. But two things; one is
that as far as we are concerned, the
incorporated body is the one that’s been in
existence for years. What we did was when we
found that one of our other names had been
appropriated, our incorporated name, we
decided to protect ourselves by incorporating
the Prohibition National Committee. I got
approval from our executive committee and we
published that fact in the National Statesmen
a month later. So it was not -- nothing that
was secret. The other thing was if -- I’m not
going to defend my character here. I wouldn’t
be in this work for all these years donating
my time and giving money if I had low
character. But since there’s an element of
trust here, if the bank would be willing, and
I had gathered before that they weren’t, if
they were willing to send 50 percent of this
directly each six months period to the two
groups, then there would be no gquestion of
them trusting me or me trusting them. It
would just take one extra check on the part of

the bank. And if they were agreeable in
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principle to doing this, that would be a way
to solve it. And I agree, 1if you appointed
somebody as an independent treasurer, what
happens when they die, when they give it up.
So -- but we would be willing to do that if
the -- if the other side was, to let the

Pennock distribute the money 50/50.

Well I think that what Mr. Plutten has

indicated that he would be agreeable to that

if there was an accounting. And I don’t think

the accounting is a big problem.

No.

I think the other issue is a term.

MR. HODGES:

Until the end of the election cycle 2007,
because we’re going to have a convention
September, 2007, we, the majority; and I have
a motion in to enjoin his, because he, with
his tiny little group, wants to claim though
the total organization. Until today they
never said there were two organizations. They

always claimed there’s one. So all of a
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sudden they’re changing position again. And
there’s some sort of a core principle that you
can’t keep changing position because every
time I answer something, they change the story
to some totally different thing. And so,
therefore, it gets to be chaos when we never
hear the same story twice. One day we fired
them; another day we’re a different group. If

we're a different group, we didn’t fire them.

MR. BODAGER:

We’re trying to come to an agreement here.

MR. HEDGES:

THE COURT:

I understand that. But I mean, you can see
why 1t’s difficult. You know, you understand
correctly; this is a difficult process. 1It’s
very sad because of a disagreement. But you
know, that’s why I say on paper I work with
both. In reality, he doesn’t speak to me

until today, because you said so.

Mr. Bodager, do you have any suggestions?

MR. BODAGER:

We agree in everything except the term now.
And the issue in the term is whether it’s

going to be until the end of this year, 2007,
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or whether it’s going to be a longer period of
time. Obviously, we think it should be a
longer period of time as long as the trust
continues to -- or this organization continues
to exist and his organization continues to
exist. If there’s a successor -- if this
organization dies, fine. But if there’s a
successor to it, that’s constituted in the --
in accordance with their bylaws, well then
that [inaudible] organization -- but I don’t
anticipate that. And whatever his [inaudible]
organization, they should be two separate
entities, and as long as they continue to
exist or their successors would get the 50/50

split and not at the end of 2007.

MR. HEDGES:

THE COURT:

As Abraham Lincoln said, what happens to
majority rule if we do this? We can’t let
succession occur. We cannot tolerate
succession. They seceded and at some point we

got to come back together again. We have...

Mr. Bodager, I understand what you’re saying.
But at this point in time it’s just begging

question because many organizations split

Diaz Data Services

331 Schuylkill Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110 ~ 717-233-6664



[image: image107.png]16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

MR.

49

because of personalities. And I would assume
that it happened here, not that the people
have changed their views or have changed their
purpose, but they split because of the manner
in which they want to carry forth their
purpose or principle. And I assume that
happened. Well what if it splits again? What
if it splits again? I mean, I would like to
see this thing settled as much as the next
person. But by the same token, since one side
is insisting on a term which is unacceptable
to the other side, I don’t know where you go.
I really don’t know where you go. There’s no
way to split the baby in half with regard to a

term. Yes?

PLUTTEN:

There may be a way to split the baby in half.
That is, to order a common unified convention.
And we all have to meet together. That would
be -- of course, I understand we would have
the majority. But I mean, that would be one
way to force the merger back. And then we,
you know, proceed from there because I think
you have the power to tell us to get together,

but I don’t know the extent of...
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THE COURT:

MR.

Yes, Mr. Dodge?

DODGE :
One last word, this term majority and
minority, when we had our convention in June
of 2003, we elected far more than ten or
eleven people to the committee. But in the
course of time since then the majority of our
members -- our older members, a number of them
have died and a number of them, after they
were getting mailings from Mr. Hedges and
getting these Court filings from Mr. Plutten,
were so discouraged to be constantly getting

this material they asked us to take their name

off the National Committee. So we are down
now to ten or eleven people. But those same
people still support us. For example George

Ormsby [ph] is the Pennsylvania chairman. And
he wrote to both groups and said take me off
from any listing. But he still contributes
financially to our work. And Mr. Hedges sent
out a mailing some maybe two years ago in
which he stated -- or no, sorry, a newspaper
interview that his group had 20 members and he

thought we had about 200. So it’s not a
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question of minority/majority. We have fewer
people on our National Committee because
they’ve dropped off because this got too much
for them. And when they got the Court
notices, you are being sued, a lot of them
thought well am I going to lose my house?
They don’t understand legal terms. So I just

wanted to share that.

Well I would think this, we have seen this in
all the types of ethnic groups, clubs, as the
older members have died off the younger people
have not become members. And I assume that’s
the same that’s happening to both of your
groups. And I would assume it won’t be too
long when the numbers will be reduced from
what they are. And it seems to be me to be
foolish that you have two groups out there
with reducing memberships and decreasing
income fighting with each other and not
devoting their time for what they figure to be

their principle.

MR. PLUTTEN:

We agree.

MR. HEDGES:
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I agree, completely.

COURT:
Now how do you patch that up? Can it be
patched up?
PLUTTEN:
Can you order a merger?
COURT:
Can both sides get together and come to a
merger, not a forced thing.
DODGE:
There’s a fundamental disagreement.
PLUTTEN:
Yes, we want to know what he does. That'’s
fundamental to him.
COURT:
You know, it’s a shame you’re spending your
time fighting with each other as opposed to
what you really were created to do.
PLUTTEN:
Thank you, Your Honor.
COURT:
It seems to me that the only true way of doing
it is a merger.
PLUTTEN:

Yes, sir.
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THE COURT:
In which personalities will have to be put
aside.

MR. PLUTTEN:
Yes, sir.

THE COURT:
In which both sides will recognize the good
that other people have done and get out of the
past; get out of the past. The past is just a
guide. But you don’t want to dwell in the
past. If you’re going to come up with a
merger, forget about the past. How are we
going to set it up for the future? Now I
don’t know how you solve this problem, really,
other than either say so much goes to one
group and so much goes to the other group,
with maybe some accounting and basically
that’s it, or you have a merger. There’s no
other way. There’s no other way.

MR. PLUTTEN:
Yes, I favor a merger...

THE COURT:
Now -- now both of you have to realize this,
if you go through Court litigation and the

Court decides which is the true National
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Prohibition Committee, whether it’s your group
or your group, that really puts a crimp in the
losing side, doesn’t it? Are both of you
willing to take that gamble?

MR. PLUTTEN:
We have the law and the facts on our side.

THE COURT:
I have often said to people, Mr. Plutten, the
only guarantee in this life is that we’re
going to die.

MR. PLUTTEN:
Yes, sir.

THE COURT:
As a practicing attorney for over 33 years, I
never guaranteed to my client how a case was
going to end up. I would give them my
educated opinion. There was never a case that
was 100 percent winner, believe me, never a
case. I’ve seen some strong cases. But even
strong cases have their weaknesses. And
that’s why attorneys make their living. They
anticipate the weakness in their cases and
then they take action to cover those
weaknesses up to the best of their ability. I

have seen cases I thought were losers that
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turned out winners; I’ve seen cases I thought
were winners that turned out losers. I'm sure
that both counsel, Mr. Soriano, Mr. Bodager,
will say the same thing. So to sit there and
say I got an absolute winner, I think that’s a
little foolish. There’s no such animal
around. But be that as it may, it’s a gamble
both of you would have to take. And I think
it would have more far-reaching ramifications
than just this $é,000 to $3,000 a year. It
would really give somebody a definite leg up,
so to speak. But does that really help both
sides out? Does that really help your purpose
out by keeping a small group further divided?
I think not, but I can’t force you to do

things.

MR. PLUTTEN:

THE COURT:

You cannot order a merger, you’re saying?

No, my function merely is to determine -- or
this Court’s function is merely to determine
which group is entitled to the monies under

the last will and testament created by Mr.

Pennock pursuant to the words of the trust.

MR. PLUTTEN:
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Yes.

COURT:
It will be up to you gentlemen to produce
evidence both documentary -- and I’'m not
talking about affidavits, documentary, as well
as live testimony to establish your particular
cases, unless you want to settle the case.

PLUTTEN:
Your Honor, until such a time a trial is
scheduled there is still time to settle,
presumably.

COURT:
Well sure.

PLUTTEN:
I mean, people do that out of Court
[inaudible] they say.

COURT:
Sure.

PLUTTEN:
Okay.

COURT:

That’s true; that’s very true. Okay I think
we pushed the envelope as far as we can for
today. What I think I’11 do is talk to my law

clerk. But this matter, in all likelihood,
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will be going to a Judge in the civil section
who will advise you as to a trial date; okay?
Thank you, gentlemen.
MR. PLUTTEN:
Thank you, Your Honor.
MR. BODAGER:
Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT:
Court’s adjourned.
* ok ok
[End of Proceeding]
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